
Capital Project 
Planning:  Working with 
Engineering Firms

Carrie Tuttle, PhD, PE, CSP
Director of Engineering
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Project Planning Life Cycle

Concept

Engineering 
Procurement

Preliminary 
Engineering

District 
Formation Bonding

Design

Permitting

Easements Bidding

Construction

Project Close 
Out
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Start Early : Plan for 2-4 years from concept to construction



Project Concept
• What problems are you trying to solve?

• Are there regulatory drivers?
• Consent Order
• Water Quality issue

• Is infrastructure limiting economic development?
• Capacity lacking to support growth
• Areas in Town or Village without service

• Overall age and condition of system in disrepair
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Assemble Project Team
• Municipal Board Members (target 2)
• Municipal Staff

• Planner
• DPW/Highway Superintendent
• Clerk/Treasurer
• Water Operator

• Consultant Team
• Engineer
• Project Manager
• Fiscal Coordination
• Legal

• Regulatory Agencies (Resource)
• Funding Agencies (Resource)
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Procuring Prof. Services
• Federal/state laws require local govts. to competitively 

procure goods/services 
• NYS General Municipal Law requires local govts. adopt written 

policies and procedures for procurement of services, including 
prof. services

• The Office of the State Comptroller recommends that these 
policies include some type of competitive method such as a 
Request for Proposal Process (RFP)

• Professional services involve specialized skill, training and 
expertise, and use of professional judgment or discretion; and 
do not have to be awarded based on “low bid”

• $133.6M was spent by local governments for auditing, legal 
and engineering services in 2016

https://www.osc.state.ny.us/localgov/pubs/research/professional-service-procurement.pdf
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https://www.osc.state.ny.us/localgov/pubs/research/professional-service-procurement.pdf


RFP Process

Develop RFP

Issue to 
Consultants

Evaluate 
Proposals

Award 
Project
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Develop RFP
• Designate single point of contact for all communication
• Objectives: What do you want this project to accomplish?
• Deliverables:  What items will the firm complete?
• Fees:  How do you want the firm to submit their fee proposal? 

Do you expect the work to be completed at a fixed flat fee or 
on a time and material basis? Do you want certain items 
broken out as “optional services”?

• Term: How much time does the firm have to complete the 
work requested?  
• Grant applications often drive schedule
• Leave time for questions and answers
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Sample RFP Schedule
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Pre-Proposal Mtg Agenda
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Issue RFP
• Public advertising isn’t required but may be beneficial to 

solicit a larger pool of proposals
• Reach out to local consultants to be sure they are aware of the 

RFP and timing of receipt of proposals
• Talk to other communities with capital projects and find out 

what firms they are using; solicit feedback 
• Be sure the timeline set works for your project and your 

funding strategy
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Evaluate Proposals
• Assemble ranking/review committee
• Utilize clearly established ranking criteria as stated in RFP
• Ensure apples to apples comparison of proposals – outside 

technical assistance may be helpful to assist in review
• Look at number of hours in addition to cost

• First pass screening may eliminate some proposals
• Interviews may be helpful to gain more information from 

short-listed firms
• Limit number of short-listed firms to preferably no more than 3
• Set time limit for each presentation – 30 minutes is usually 

sufficient with 10-15 minutes for Q&A
• Conduct all interviews on the same day

• Formally notify all firms that proposed of award
11



Sample Comparison
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Award Project
• Formally notify all firms that proposed of award
• Reiterate schedule as outlined in RFP

• Deliverables due X date from Notice of Award
• Coordinate kick-off meeting with project team as soon as 

possible to get project moving
• Be responsive in assembly of documents requested to be 

reviewed by engineer
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Develop Project Scope for PER
• Identify Problems/Needs

• Service Area Needs
• Unserved areas

• Water Quality 
• Regulatory compliance with existing municipal supply or treatment

• Capacity 
• More demand than existing supply can provide

• Distribution/Collection System
• Frequent breaks
• Undersized supply lines for demand/low pressure

• Storage/Equilization
• Economic development
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Considerations
• Are regional/shared service solutions an option?

• Talk to your neighbors; do they have a similar problem 
that could be solved with a regional solution?

• Think big
• Imagine you have one bite at the apple to solve your 

infrastructure problems
• It’s hard to go back and add more scope, it’s easier to 

downsize or split project
• Down the road projects can be phased, or down-sized 

to maintain feasibility
16



Funding Life Cycle
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Identify Funding Strategy/Schedule
• NYS Environmental Facilities Corp.
• Empire State Development
• DASNY State & Municipal Grant
• Northern Border Regional Commission
• USDA Rural Development Rural Utility Services
• Office of Community Renewal CDBG

Submit Grant Applications

Execute Grant Agreements

Developing Short & Long Term Financing Plan



Develop a Funding Strategy
• Objective:  Accomplish as many of your project needs as 

possible with the lowest possible impact to your rate 
payers
• To do this, you need experts on your team that understand  

funding sources 
• You may have the best project in the world but if you can’t afford 

it, then it won’t make it to implementation
• Sometimes a larger project, instead of multiple smaller projects, 

opens the door to larger sources of funding
• Funding cycles are typically annual, and vary based on the 

source of funding
• It may take 2 years to apply for and obtain funding to move your 

project foward
18



Educate Your Board & Rate 
Payers
• Why is this project necessary?
• What will happen if the project isn’t completed?
• Why does the project have to be this size?
• What if some customers don’t want municipal water? 

Will they still have to pay?
• Will there be water meters?
• An uneducated public/board can be a show stopper if 

district formation is required for the project
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Bottom Line…

How much is this going to cost me?



Improve Your Odds

Agreements for Professional Services
Preliminary Engineering
District Formation
Bond Resolution
State Environmental Quality Review (SEQR)
State Historic Preservation Office Review (SHPO)
____________________________________________
Final Design
Permitting (APA, DEC)
Regulatory Approval (DOT, DOH)
Easements
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Shovel Ready Projects Have A Better Chance of Funding
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Start Early : Plan for 2-4 years from concept to construction



Thank You
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Director of Engineering
Engineering & Environmental Services Division

23557 NYS Route 37
Watertown, NY 13601
Email: ctuttle@danc.org
Website: www.danc.org
315/661-3259
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